MICROCHIP TECHNOLOGY INC Form 424B3 February 26, 2016 Table of Contents

> Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) Registration No. 333-209477

MERGER PROPOSAL YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

Dear Atmel Stockholders:

Microchip Technology Incorporated (Microchip) and Atmel Corporation (Atmel) have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 19, 2016 (the Merger Agreement), pursuant to which Microchip will acquire Atmel in a merger transaction (the Merger). If the Merger is completed, Atmel stockholders will receive, in exchange for each outstanding share of Atmel common stock owned immediately prior to the Merger (except for such shares held by Microchip, Atmel or their respective subsidiaries and except for dissenting shares) (1) \$7.00 in cash without interest (the Cash Consideration), (2) \$1.15 in Microchip common stock (valued at the average closing price for a share of Microchip common stock for the ten most recent trading days ending on the last trading day prior to the closing of the Merger (the Closing)), subject to the conditions and restrictions set forth in the Merger Agreement (the Stock Consideration), and (3) cash in lieu of fractional shares of Microchip common stock as contemplated by the Merger Agreement (together, the Merger Consideration). The maximum number of shares of Microchip common stock that will be issued in connection with the Merger is 13.0 million shares. To the extent that the number of shares of Microchip common stock issuable in the Merger would exceed 13.0 million shares, the Cash Consideration will be increased such that the value of the combined Cash Consideration and Stock Consideration will remain at \$8.15 per share (based upon the average price described in the previous sentence) (any such increase, the Supplemental Cash Consideration).

Based on the number of shares of Atmel common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2016, and the number of shares of Microchip common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2016, and assuming a ten-trading day average closing price of \$41.49 (calculated based on the closing prices for the ten trading days ended on February 16, 2016, the most recent practicable range of trading days prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus), it is expected that, immediately after completion of the Merger, former Atmel stockholders will receive shares of Microchip common stock in the Merger representing approximately 5.43% of the outstanding shares of Microchip common stock. The shares of Microchip common stock are traded, and following the Merger will continue to be traded, on The NASDAQ Stock Market (NASDAQ) under the symbol MCHP.

The Merger Consideration represents a premium to Atmel stockholders of approximately 12% over Atmel s closing stock price on September 18, 2015 (the last trading day before Atmel announced it had entered into a merger agreement with Dialog Semiconductor plc (Dialog), which merger agreement was subsequently terminated by Atmel) and approximately 9% over Atmel s closing stock price on May 5, 2015, the day prior to the public announcement that Atmel s President and Chief Executive Officer, Steven Laub, had informed the board of directors of Atmel (the Atmel Board) that he intended to retire as an officer and director of Atmel.

Atmel will hold a special meeting of its stockholders to vote on matters related to the proposed Merger. The special meeting will be held on April 1, 2016, at 8:00 a.m., local time, at Atmel s headquarters located at 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110. At the special meeting, Atmel stockholders will be asked to adopt the Merger Agreement. In addition, Atmel stockholders will be asked to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger and to approve the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to adopt the Merger Agreement.

The exchange of the Merger Consideration for Atmel common stock in the Merger will be a taxable transaction to Atmel stockholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes and also may be taxable under state, local and non-U.S. income and other tax laws. We encourage Atmel stockholders to carefully review the information under the heading Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of this proxy statement/prospectus for a description of certain U.S. tax consequences of the Merger.

We cannot complete the Merger without the adoption of the Merger Agreement by Atmel stockholders. It is important that your shares be represented and voted regardless of the size of your holdings. A failure to vote will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the adoption of the Merger Agreement. Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting, we urge you to submit a proxy to have your shares voted in advance of the special meeting by using one of the methods described in the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus.

The Atmel Board recommends that Atmel stockholders vote:

- 1. **FOR** the adoption of the Merger Agreement;
- 2. **FOR** the approval, on a non-binding, advisory basis, of the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger; and
- 3, **FOR** the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to adopt the Merger Agreement.

The accompanying proxy statement/prospectus provides important information regarding the special meeting and a detailed description of the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the matters to be presented at the special meeting. We urge you to read the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus carefully and in its entirety. Please pay particular attention to the section entitled Risk Factors beginning on page 32 of the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus.

We look forward to seeing you at the special meeting and thank you for your continued support of, and interest in, Atmel.

Sincerely,

Steven Laub

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2016

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the Merger or the securities to be issued in connection with the Merger or determined if this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This proxy statement/prospectus is dated February 26, 2016 and is first being mailed to Atmel stockholders on or about February 29, 2016.

ATMEL CORPORATION

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Date: April 1, 2016

Time: 8:00 a.m., local time

Place: 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110

Items of Business:

- 1. *Merger Proposal*: To vote on a proposal (the Merger Proposal) to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 19, 2016 (the Merger Agreement), among Atmel Corporation (Atmel), Microchip Technology Incorporated, a Delaware corporation (Microchip), and Hero Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip (Merger Sub), which provides for the merger of Merger Sub with and into Atmel, with Atmel surviving the merger as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip (the Merger).
- 2. Non-Binding, Advisory Approval of Compensation Payments. To vote on a proposal (the Compensation Proposal) to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger.
- 3. Adjournment of the Special Meeting. To vote on a proposal (the Adjournment Proposal) to approve the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the Merger Proposal.

Atmel will transact no other business at the special meeting, except for business properly brought before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Record Date:

Only Atmel stockholders of record at the close of business on February 23, 2016 (the Record Date) may vote at the special meeting or at any postponement or adjournment of the meeting.

Recommendations of the Atmel Board of Directors: The Atmel Board of Directors recommends that Atmel stockholders vote FOR the Merger Proposal; FOR the Compensation Proposal; and FOR the Adjournment Proposal.

Please carefully read the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, which describes the matters to be voted upon at the special meeting and how to vote your shares. Your vote is very important. To ensure your representation at the special meeting, please promptly complete and return the enclosed proxy card or submit your proxy by telephone or through the Internet.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Steven Laub

President and Chief Executive Officer

This Notice of Special Meeting of Stockholders is being distributed and made available on or about February $29,\,2016$

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This proxy statement/prospectus incorporates by reference important business and financial information about Microchip and Atmel from other documents that are not included in or delivered with this proxy statement/prospectus. This information is available to you without charge upon your written or oral request. You can obtain the documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus by requesting them in writing or by telephone from the appropriate company at the following addresses and telephone numbers:

Microchip Technology Incorporated

Atmel Corporation

2355 West Chandler Boulevard

1600 Technology Drive

Chandler, Arizona 85224

San Jose, California 95110

Telephone: (480) 792-7200

Telephone: (408) 441-0311

Attn: Investor Relations

or

Innisfree M&A Incorporated

501 Madison Avenue, 20th Floor

New York, NY 10022

Shareholders call toll-free: (888) 750-5834

Banks and brokers call collect: (212) 750-5833

Investors may also consult Microchip s and Atmel s websites for more information concerning the Merger described in this proxy statement/prospectus. Microchip s website is www.microchip.com and Atmel s website is www.atmel.com. Information included on these websites is not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus.

In addition, if you have questions about the Merger, the special meeting, or the proposals to be considered at the special meeting, need additional copies of this document and the annexes to this document, or need to obtain proxy cards or other information related to the proxy solicitation, you may contact Atmel s proxy solicitor, Innisfree M&A Incorporated, at the address and telephone number set forth above.

If you would like to request any documents, please do so by March 28, 2016 in order to receive them before the special meeting.

For more information, please see the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

ABOUT THIS PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS

This proxy statement/prospectus, which forms part of a registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) by Microchip, constitutes a prospectus of Microchip under Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), with respect to the shares of Microchip common stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger. This proxy statement/prospectus also constitutes a proxy statement for Atmel under Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). It also constitutes a notice of meeting with respect to the special meeting.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. No one has been authorized to provide you with information that is different from that contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this proxy statement/prospectus. Microchip and Atmel take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurances as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you and, if given, such information must not be relied on as having been authorized. This proxy statement/prospectus is dated February 26, 2016. You should not assume that the information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate as of any date other than that date. You should not assume that the information incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date of the incorporated document. Neither our mailing of this proxy statement/prospectus to Atmel stockholders nor the issuance by Microchip of shares of Microchip common stock in connection with the Merger will create any implication to the contrary.

This proxy statement/prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities, or the solicitation of a proxy, in any jurisdiction to or from any person to whom it is unlawful to make any such offer or solicitation. Information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus regarding Microchip has been provided by Microchip and information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus regarding Atmel has been provided by Atmel.

All references in this proxy statement/prospectus to Microchip refer to Microchip Technology Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise; all references in this proxy statement/prospectus to Atmel refer to Atmel Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise; all references to Merger Sub refer to Hero Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip formed for the sole purpose of effecting the Merger; unless otherwise indicated or as the context requires, all references in this proxy statement/prospectus to we, our and us refer to Microchip and Atmel, collectively; unless otherwise indicated or as the context requires, all references to the Merger Agreement refer to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of January 19, 2016 by and among Microchip, Merger Sub and Atmel, a copy of which is included as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus. All summaries of, and references to, the Merger Agreement are qualified by the full copy of and complete text of such agreement in the form attached hereto as Annex A. Also, in this proxy statement/prospectus, \$ refers to U.S. dollars.

Atmel stockholders should not construe the contents of this proxy statement/prospectus as legal, tax or financial advice. Atmel stockholders should consult with their own legal, tax, financial or other professional advisors.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS	V
SUMMARY	1
<u>The Companies</u>	1
Comparative per Share Market Price and Dividend Information	2
Risk Factors	2
The Atmel Special Meeting	2
The Merger	3
The Merger Agreement	5
<u>Dividends</u>	12
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences	12
Accounting Treatment	13
Comparison of Stockholders Rights	13
THE COMPANIES	14
Microchip Technology Incorporated	14
Atmel Corporation	14
Hero Acquisition Corporation	14
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF MICROCHIP	15
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF ATMEL	17
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION	19
UNAUDITED COMPARATIVE HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA PER SHARE DATA	28
COMPARATIVE MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)	30
Historical Market Price Information	30
Recent Closing Prices and Comparative Market Price Information	30
Dividend Policy	31
RISK FACTORS	32
Risk Factors Relating to the Merger	32
Risk Factors Related to Microchip Following the Merger	37
Other Risk Factors of Microchip and Atmel	41
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	42
THE ATMEL SPECIAL MEETING	44
Date, Time and Location	44
Purpose	44
Recommendation of the Atmel Board	44
Record Date and Quorum	44
Required Vote	45
Share Ownership and Voting by Atmel Directors and Executive Officers	45
Voting of Shares	46
Revocation of Proxies	47
Solicitation of Proxies; Costs of Solicitation	47
Tabulation of Votes	47
Adjournments and Postponements	47
Attending the Special Meeting	48
Assistance	49
2 to statice	47

PROPOSAL 1: THE MERGER PROPOSAL	50
Required Vote	50
Recommendation of the Atmel Board	50
PROPOSAL 2: THE COMPENSATION PROPOSAL	51
Required Vote	51
Recommendation of the Atmel Board	51

-ii-

Table of Contents	
PROPOSAL 3: THE ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL	52
Required Vote	52
Recommendation of the Atmel Board	52
THE MERGER	53
Effects of the Merger	53
Background of the Merger	53
Recommendation of the Atmel Board; Atmel s Reasons for the Merger	71
Opinion of Atmel s Financial Advisor	78
Certain Unaudited Prospective Financial Information Reviewed by the Atmel Board and Atmel s Financial	
Advisor	85
Interests of Atmel s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	88
Treatment of Atmel Options and Other Equity-Based Awards	93
Regulatory Clearances Required for the Merger	94
<u>Dividends</u>	94
<u>Listing of Shares of Microchip Common Stock</u>	94
Delisting and Deregistration of Atmel Common Stock	95
<u>Appraisal Rights</u>	95
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	99
The Merger	99
Merger Consideration	99
Treatment of Atmel Options and Other Equity-Based Awards	100
Closing and Effective Time	100
Conversion of Shares	101
Exchange Agent; Letter of Transmittal	101
Appraisal Rights Note 1.12	102
Withholding Divided to the state of the stat	102
Dividends and Distributions One of the state of the stat	102
Representations and Warranties of Microchip, Merger Sub and Atmel	102
Material Adverse Effect Particular on Atruct of Provinces Particular the Classics	105
Restrictions on Atmel s Business Pending the Closing	106 108
Atmel s Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers	
Atmel s Agreement Not to Change the Atmel Board Recommendation Preparation of the Form S-4 and the Proxy Statement/Prospectus; Atmel Special Meeting	110
Reasonable Best Efforts	111 111
Employee Matters	111
<u>Indemnification and Insurance</u>	112
Regulatory Filings	113
Stock Exchange Listing	114
Financing	114
Litigation Related to the Transaction	117
Dialog Termination Fee	117
Other Agreements	117
Conditions to Closing	117
Termination of the Merger Agreement	119
Termination Fees	120
Effect of Termination	121
Expenses	121
<u>Amendment</u>	121

Governing Law	121
Specific Performance	121

-iii-

Table of Contents	
MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES	123
<u>General</u>	123
<u>U.S. Holders</u>	123
Non-U.S. Holders	124
Backup Withholding and Information Reporting	125
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT	126
ATMEL SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	126
DESCRIPTION OF MICROCHIP CAPITAL STOCK	128
Common Stock	128
Preferred Stock	128
COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDERS RIGHTS	129
<u>LEGAL MATTERS</u>	135
<u>EXPERTS</u>	135
<u>Microchip</u>	135
<u>Atmel</u>	135
<u>FUTURE STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS</u>	135
<u>Microchip</u>	135
<u>Atmel</u>	136
HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS	136
OTHER MATTERS	137
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	137
Annex A Merger Agreement	
Annex B Opinion of Qatalyst Partners LP	
Annex C Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law	

-iv-

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The following are some questions that you, as a stockholder of Atmel Corporation (Atmel) may have regarding the Merger and the other matters being considered at the special meeting and the answers to those questions. Microchip Technology Incorporated (Microchip) and Atmel urge you to carefully read the remainder of this proxy statement/prospectus because the information in this section does not provide all the information that might be important to you with respect to the Merger and the other matters being considered at the special meeting. Additional important information is also contained in the Annexes to, and the documents incorporated by reference into, this proxy statement/prospectus.

General Questions and Answers about the Merger

- Q: What is the proposed transaction on which I am being asked to vote?
- A: You are being asked to vote to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 19, 2016 (the Merger Agreement), entered into by and among Microchip, Hero Acquisition Corporation, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip (Merger Sub), and Atmel. A copy of the Merger Agreement is included as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into Atmel, with Atmel surviving the merger as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip (the Merger). The Merger cannot be completed unless, among other things, holders of a majority of the shares of the outstanding Atmel common stock as of the Record Date (as defined below) for the special meeting of Atmel stockholders (the special meeting) vote to adopt the Merger Agreement. See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Conditions to Closing beginning on page 117 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Atmel stockholders will also be asked to approve the Adjournment Proposal and the Compensation Proposal, both as defined below in the section entitled What are the proposals on which the Atmel stockholders are being asked to vote?

- Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement/prospectus?
- A: This proxy statement/prospectus contains important information about the Merger and the other proposals being voted on at the special meeting, and you should read it carefully. It is a proxy statement because the Atmel Board of Directors (the Atmel Board) is soliciting proxies from its stockholders. It is a prospectus because Microchip will issue shares of Microchip common stock in connection with the Merger. The enclosed materials allow you to have your shares voted by proxy without attending the special meeting in person. Your vote is important. We encourage you to submit your proxy as soon as possible.
- Q: What will Atmel stockholders receive for their shares of common stock in the Merger?

A:

If the Merger is completed, Atmel stockholders will be entitled to receive, in exchange for each share of Atmel common stock they hold at the Effective Time (as defined below) of the Merger, Merger Consideration (as defined below) equal to \$8.15 per share, subject to adjustment in certain cases as further discussed under. The Merger Agreement The Merger beginning on page 99 of this proxy statement/prospectus. Atmel stockholders will have the right to receive (1) \$7.00 in cash without interest (the Cash Consideration), (2) \$1.15 in Microchip common stock (valued at the average closing price for a share of Microchip common stock for the ten most recent trading days ending on the last trading day prior to the closing of the Merger (the Closing)), subject to the conditions and restrictions set forth in the Merger Agreement (the Stock Consideration), and (3) cash in lieu of fractional shares of Microchip common stock as contemplated by the Merger Agreement (together, the Merger Consideration). The maximum number of shares of Microchip common stock that will be issued in connection with the Merger is 13.0 million shares, and to the extent that the number of shares of Microchip common stock issuable in the

-V-

Merger would exceed 13.0 million shares, the Cash Consideration per share of Atmel common stock will be increased such that the value of the combined Cash Consideration and Stock Consideration will remain at \$8.15 per share (based upon the average price described in the previous sentence) (any such increase, the Supplemental Cash Consideration).

Q: After the Merger, how much of Microchip will Atmel stockholders own?

A: Based on the number of shares of Atmel common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2016, and the number of shares of Microchip common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2016, and assuming a ten-trading day average closing price of \$41.49 (calculated based on the closing prices for the ten trading days ended on February 16, 2016, the most recent practicable range of trading days prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus), it is expected that, immediately after completion of the Merger, former Atmel stockholders will receive shares of Microchip common stock in the Merger representing approximately 5.43% of the outstanding shares of Microchip common stock.

Q: Will Atmel stockholders be able to trade the shares of Microchip common stock that they receive in the transaction?

A: Yes. Shares of Microchip common stock are listed on NASDAQ under the symbol MCHP. Shares of Microchip common stock received in exchange for shares of Atmel common stock in the Merger will be freely transferable under U.S. federal securities laws.

Q: What will I receive in the Merger in exchange for my equity awards?

A: Immediately prior to the Effective Time (as defined below), each outstanding option to purchase shares of Atmel common stock (each, an Atmel Option), whether vested or not, will accelerate and become vested and exercisable in full. To the extent that such Atmel Options are not exercised voluntarily by the date immediately preceding the Effective Time, such Atmel Options will be automatically net-exercised (with the exercise price and applicable withholding taxes paid by withholding Atmel common stock otherwise issuable to such option holder). Upon such exercise, the former holder of the Atmel Option will be issued the net number of shares of Atmel common stock resulting from the net exercise, and such stockholder will thereafter be entitled to receive the Merger Consideration in respect of these shares of Atmel common stock. Any Atmel Option with an exercise price greater than the Merger Consideration will be cancelled at the Effective Time for no consideration. No former Atmel Options will remain outstanding following the consummation of the Merger.

Each outstanding restricted stock unit, deferred stock unit, performance-based restricted stock unit or similar right with respect to Atmel common stock (including performance share awards denominated in restricted stock units) (each, an Atmel Unit) that is held by an individual who will continue in service with Microchip at the Effective Time will be assumed by Microchip and converted into equivalent awards in respect of shares of Microchip common stock using a customary exchange ratio intended to provide in respect of the Atmel Unit value equivalent to the Merger Consideration as of the Effective Time.

In addition, any vested Atmel Units will be treated as outstanding Atmel common stock in the Merger, and the holders of such vested Atmel Units that have not received the underlying shares of Atmel common stock at the Effective Time will receive the Merger Consideration (subject to applicable tax withholding). No Atmel Units will remain outstanding following the consummation of the Merger.

Q: What is required to complete the Merger?

A: Each of Microchip s and Atmel s obligation to consummate the Merger is subject, as relevant, to a number of conditions specified in the Merger Agreement, including the following: (1) adoption of the Merger Agreement by Atmel s stockholders; (2) approval for listing on NASDAQ of the shares of Microchip

-vi-

common stock to be issued in the Merger, subject to official notice of issuance; (3) receipt of customary antitrust approvals; (4) absence of laws, orders, judgments and injunctions that enjoin or otherwise prohibit consummation of the Merger or any proceedings instituted by a governmental entity with competent jurisdiction seeking any of the foregoing; (5) effectiveness under the Securities Act of this registration statement on Form S-4 (the Form S-4); (6) subject to certain materiality related standards contained in the Merger Agreement, the accuracy of representations and warranties of Atmel and Microchip, respectively, and material performance by Atmel and Microchip of their respective covenants contained in the Merger Agreement; and (7) the absence of a material adverse effect with respect to the other party. The consummation of the Merger is not subject to a financing condition. See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Conditions to Closing beginning on page 117 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: When do you expect the Merger to be completed?

A: Microchip and Atmel expect the Closing to occur in the second quarter of calendar year 2016. However, the Merger is subject to various regulatory approvals and the satisfaction or waiver of other conditions, and it is possible that factors outside the control of Microchip and Atmel could result in the Merger being completed at an earlier time, a later time or not at all. There may be a substantial amount of time between the date on which the special meeting is held and the date of the completion of the Merger. The Merger will become effective at such time as the certificate of merger is duly filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on the date that the Closing takes place (the Closing Date), or at such subsequent date or time as Atmel, Microchip and Merger Sub agree and specify in the certificate of merger (the Effective Time).

Q: Will I be subject to U.S. federal income tax upon the exchange of shares of Atmel common stock for the Merger Consideration?

A: If you are a U.S. Holder (as defined below), the exchange of your shares of Atmel common stock for cash and shares of Microchip common stock in the Merger will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes, which generally will require you to recognize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the sum of the amount of cash and the fair market value of the shares of Microchip common stock you receive in the Merger and your tax basis in the shares of Atmel common stock exchanged in the Merger.

If you are a Non-U.S. Holder (as defined below), you generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax with respect to the exchange of shares of Atmel common stock for cash and shares of Microchip common stock in the Merger, unless you have certain connections to the United States.

Because particular circumstances may differ, we recommend that you consult your own tax advisor to determine the U.S. federal income tax consequences to you relating to the Merger in light of your own particular circumstances and the consequences to you arising under U.S. federal non-income tax laws or the laws of any state, local or non-U.S. taxing jurisdiction. A more complete description of material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger is provided in the section entitled Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 123 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: What happens if the Merger is not completed?

A: If the Merger Agreement is not adopted by Atmel stockholders or if the Merger is not completed for any other reason, Atmel stockholders will not receive the Merger Consideration in exchange for their shares of Atmel common stock. Instead, Atmel will remain an independent public company and Atmel common stock will continue to be listed and traded on NASDAQ. Under specified circumstances, Atmel may be required to pay Microchip a termination fee or reimburse Microchip s transaction expenses, or Microchip may be required to pay Atmel a termination fee, as described in the section entitled The Merger Agreement Termination Fees beginning on page 120 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

-vii-

Q: What do I need to do?

A: After you have carefully read and considered the information contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this proxy statement/prospectus, please vote by submitting your proxy card or voting instruction form by following the instructions set forth below under the section entitled Questions and Answers about the Special Meeting How do I vote?

Questions and Answers about the Special Meeting

Q: When and where will the special meeting be held?

A: The special meeting will be held on April 1, 2016 at 8:00 a.m., local time, at Atmel s headquarters located at 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110.

Q: Who is soliciting my proxy to vote at the special meeting?

A: The Atmel Board is soliciting your proxy to vote at the special meeting. This proxy statement/prospectus summarizes the information you need to know to vote on the proposals to be presented at the special meeting.

Q: Who is entitled to vote?

A: Only holders of record of Atmel common stock at the close of business on February 23, 2016, the record date for the meeting (the Record Date), are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting and any postponements or adjournments of the meeting. On the Record Date, 423,290,513 shares of Atmel common stock were issued and outstanding and no shares of Atmel s preferred stock were outstanding.

Q: What are the proposals on which I am being asked to vote?

A: There are three proposals that will be voted on at the special meeting:

Merger Proposal: The proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement, which provides for the merger of Merger Sub with and into Atmel, with Atmel surviving the merger as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip (the Merger Proposal).

Compensation Proposal: The proposal to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger (the Compensation Proposal).

Adjournment Proposal: The proposal to approve the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the Merger Proposal (the Adjournment Proposal).

Approval by stockholders of Atmel of the Merger Proposal (the Atmel Stockholder Approval) is required for completion of the Merger. Approval by Atmel stockholders of the Compensation Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal is not required for completion of the Merger. No other matters are intended to be brought before the special meeting by Atmel.

Q: What vote is required for approval of the proposals in this proxy statement/prospectus, and what happens if I abstain?

A: The following are the vote requirements:

Merger Proposal: The affirmative vote, in person or by proxy, of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Atmel common stock entitled to vote as of the Record Date is required to approve

-viii-

the Merger Proposal. If you abstain from voting, fail to vote at the special meeting, or fail to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote on the Merger Proposal, it will have the same effect as a vote cast against the Merger Proposal.

Compensation Proposal: The affirmative vote, in person or by proxy, of holders of a majority of the shares of Atmel common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting and entitled to vote thereon is required to approve the Compensation Proposal. If you abstain from voting or attend the special meeting and fail to vote, it will have the same effect as a vote cast against the Compensation Proposal. If you do not attend the special meeting or fail to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote on the Compensation Proposal, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Compensation Proposal, assuming a quorum is present.

Adjournment Proposal: The affirmative vote, in person or by proxy, of holders of a majority of the shares of Atmel common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting and entitled to vote thereon is required to approve the Adjournment Proposal. If you abstain from voting or attend the special meeting and fail to vote, it will have the same effect as a vote cast against the Adjournment Proposal. If you do not attend the special meeting or fail to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote on the Adjournment Proposal, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Adjournment Proposal, assuming a quorum is present.

Q: How does the Atmel Board recommend that I vote my shares of Atmel common stock on the proposals?

A: The Atmel Board recommends that stockholders vote their shares of Atmel common stock:

FOR the Merger Proposal;

FOR the Compensation Proposal; and

FOR the Adjournment Proposal.

Q: How do I vote?

A: If you are a stockholder of record of Atmel as of the Record Date:

You may vote in person at the special meeting; or

You may vote by completing, signing, dating and mailing the enclosed proxy card in the envelope provided, or by submitting a proxy by telephone or over the Internet by following the instructions on the enclosed proxy card.

If your shares of Atmel common stock are held in the name of your broker, bank or other nominee, you should submit voting instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee. Please refer to the voting instruction card included in these proxy materials by your broker, bank or other nominee or contact your broker, bank or other nominees to obtain instructions on how to instruct them with respect to the voting of your shares.

- Q: If my shares are held in a stock brokerage account, or in street name by my broker, bank or nominee, will my broker, bank or nominee automatically vote my shares for me?
- A: No. If your shares are held in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you are considered the beneficial holder of the shares held for you in what is known as street name. You are not the record holder of such shares. If this is the case, this proxy statement/prospectus has been forwarded to you by your broker, bank or other nominee. As the beneficial holder, unless your broker, bank or other nominee has discretionary authority over your shares, you generally have the right to direct your broker, bank or other nominee as to how to vote your shares. You can contact your broker, bank or other nominees to obtain instructions on how to instruct them with respect to the voting of your shares. If you do not provide voting

-ix-

instructions, your shares will not be counted in determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting or be voted on any proposal on which your broker, bank or other nominee does not have discretionary authority. This is often called a broker non-vote. In order to avoid broker non-votes with respect to your shares of Atmel common stock, you should provide your broker, bank or other nominee with instructions as to how to vote your shares of Atmel common stock.

Please note that you may not vote shares held in street name by returning a proxy card directly to Atmel or by voting in person at the special meeting unless you first obtain a proxy from your broker, bank or other nominee. Please follow the voting instructions provided by your broker, bank or other nominee so that it may vote your shares on your behalf.

Q: How many votes do I have?

A: Atmel stockholders are entitled to cast one vote for each share of Atmel common stock held as of the Record Date on all matters properly submitted for voting. On the Record Date, 423,290,513 shares of Atmel common stock were issued and outstanding and no shares of Atmel s preferred stock were outstanding.

Q: What if I sell my shares of Atmel common stock before the special meeting?

A: If you transfer your shares of Atmel common stock after the Record Date but before the special meeting, you will, unless you provide the transferee of your shares with a proxy, retain your right to vote at the special meeting, but will have transferred the right to receive the Merger Consideration. In order to receive the Merger Consideration, you must hold your shares through the Effective Time.

Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card to vote my shares of Atmel common stock?

A: You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy statement/prospectus and multiple paper proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares of Atmel common stock in more than one brokerage account, you may receive a set of proxy materials for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are an Atmel stockholder of record and your shares of Atmel common stock are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one set of proxy materials. Please sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive and follow the voting instructions set forth in this proxy statement/prospectus to ensure that all your shares of Atmel common stock are voted.

Q: Can I change my vote?

A: Yes, if you are a stockholder of record as of the Record Date, you may change your vote: (1) by delivering to Atmel (Attention: Corporate Secretary, 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110), prior to your shares being voted at the special meeting, a later dated written notice of revocation or a later dated duly executed proxy

card; or (2) by attending the special meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy). A stockholder of record who has voted on the Internet or by telephone may also change his or her vote by subsequently making a timely and valid Internet or telephone vote.

If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name by a broker, bank or other nominee, you may revoke your proxy and vote your shares in person at the special meeting only in accordance with applicable rules and procedures as employed by such broker, bank or other nominee. If your shares are held in an account at a broker, bank or other nominee, you should contact your broker, bank or other nominee to change your vote.

Q: How many shares must be present to hold the special meeting?

A: Holders of a majority in voting power of the issued and outstanding shares of Atmel common stock entitled to vote at the special meeting must be present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting in

-X-

order to have the required quorum for transacting business. Stockholders are counted as present at the meeting if they (1) are present in person at the special meeting; or (2) have properly submitted a proxy card or submitted a proxy by telephone or over the Internet. Abstaining votes are considered present and entitled to vote and, therefore, are included for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting. Broker non-votes are not entitled to vote and, therefore, are not included for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting.

Q: Are Atmel stockholders entitled to appraisal rights?

- A: Record holders of Atmel common stock who do not vote in favor of the Merger Proposal and otherwise comply with the requirements and procedures of Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the DGCL), are entitled to exercise appraisal rights, which generally entitle stockholders to receive in lieu of the Merger Consideration a cash payment of an amount determined by the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the Court of Chancery) to be the fair value of their Atmel common stock. The fair value of Atmel common stock could be less than, more than or the same as the Merger Consideration. A detailed description of the procedures required to be followed in order to perfect appraisal rights by Atmel stockholders if desired is included in the section entitled. The Merger Appraisal Rights beginning on page 95 of this proxy statement/prospectus. The full text of Section 262 of the DGCL is attached as Annex C to this proxy statement/prospectus. Due to the complexity of the procedures described above, Atmel stockholders who are considering exercising such rights are encouraged to seek the advice of legal counsel.
- Q: Why am I being asked to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger?
- A: The SEC has adopted rules that require Atmel to seek a non-binding, advisory vote on the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger. Atmel urges its stockholders to read the section entitled The Merger Interests of Atmel s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on page 88 of this proxy statement/prospectus, which describes in more detail how Atmel s compensation policies and procedures relating to its named executive officers operate and how they are designed to achieve Atmel s compensation objectives.
- Q: What happens if the proposal to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation payments that will or may be made to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger is not approved?
- A: Approval, on a non-binding, advisory basis, of the compensation payments that will or may be made by Atmel to Atmel s named executive officers in connection with the Merger is not a condition to completion of the Merger. The vote is a non-binding, advisory vote and is therefore not binding on Atmel, the Atmel Board, the compensation committee of the Atmel Board, Microchip, Microchip s Board of Directors (the Microchip Board) or the compensation committee of the Microchip Board. Since compensation and benefits to be paid or provided in connection with the Merger are based on contractual arrangements with the named executive officers, the outcome of this advisory vote will not affect the obligation to make these payments and these payments may still

be made even if the Atmel stockholders do not approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the Compensation Proposal.

Q: Who pays for the solicitation of proxies to vote at the special meeting?

A: Atmel will bear the entire cost of proxy solicitation, including preparation, assembly, printing and mailing of the notice of special meeting, proxy card, this proxy statement/prospectus and any additional materials furnished to Atmel stockholders. Copies of these materials will be furnished to brokerage houses, fiduciaries and custodians holding shares in their names that are beneficially owned by others to forward to those beneficial owners. In addition, Atmel may reimburse the costs of forwarding these materials to those

-xi-

beneficial owners. Solicitation of proxies by mail may be supplemented by one or more of telephone, email, facsimile or personal solicitation by Atmel s directors, officers or employees. No additional compensation will be paid for such services. Atmel has engaged Innisfree M&A Incorporated to aid in the solicitation of proxies from brokers, bank nominees and other institutional owners for approximately \$25,000, plus reimbursement of related expenses.

Q: Should I send in my share certificate(s) now?

A: No. Please do not send any share certificates with your proxy card. After the Merger is completed, you will receive written instructions, including a letter of transmittal, for exchanging your shares of Atmel common stock for the cash payment and shares of Microchip common stock you are entitled to receive in connection with the Merger.

Q: Whom should I call if I have questions?

A: If you have questions or if you need assistance submitting your proxy or voting your shares or need additional copies of this proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed proxy card, you should contact Atmel s proxy solicitor at:

Innisfree M&A Incorporated

501 Madison Avenue, 20th Floor

New York, NY 10022

Shareholders call toll-free: (888) 750-5834

Banks and brokers call collect: (212) 750-5833

You may also contact the Atmel Investor Relations department at:

Atmel Corporation

1600 Technology Drive

San Jose, California 95110

Telephone number: (408) 441-0311

-xii-

SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus and may not contain all the information that is important to you with respect to the Merger and the other matters being considered at the special meeting. You are urged to read the remainder of this proxy statement/prospectus carefully, including the attached Annexes, and the other documents referred to or incorporated by reference herein. See also the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus. Each item in this summary refers to the page of this proxy statement/prospectus on which that subject is discussed in more detail.

The Companies

Microchip Technology Incorporated (see page 14)

Microchip is a leading provider of microcontroller, mixed-signal, analog and Flash-IP solutions, providing low-risk product development, lower total system cost and faster time to market for thousands of diverse customer applications worldwide. Microchip develops, manufactures and sells specialized semiconductor products used by its customers for a wide variety of embedded control applications. Microchip s product portfolio comprises general purpose and specialized 8-bit, 16-bit, and 32-bit microcontrollers, a broad spectrum of high-performance linear, mixed-signal, power management, thermal management, RF, safety, security, wired connectivity and wireless connectivity devices, as well as serial EEPROMs, Serial Flash memories, Parallel Flash memories and serial SRAM memories. Microchip also licenses Flash-IP solutions that are incorporated in a broad range of products. Microchip s synergistic product portfolio targets thousands of applications worldwide and a growing demand for high-performance designs in the automotive, communications, computing, consumer and industrial control markets. Microchip s quality systems are ISO/TS16949 (2009 version) certified. Shares of Microchip common stock are traded on NASDAQ under the symbol MCHP. Following the Merger, shares of Microchip common stock will continue to be traded on NASDAQ under the symbol MCHP.

The principal executive offices of Microchip are located at 2355 West Chandler Boulevard, Chandler, Arizona 85224, and its telephone number is (480) 792-7200. Additional information about Microchip and its subsidiaries is included in documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. See the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Atmel Corporation (see page 14)

Atmel is one of the world s leading suppliers of general purpose microcontrollers, which are self-contained computers-on-a-chip. This product focus has enabled Atmel to develop and maintain a diversified, global customer base that incorporates its semiconductors into industrial products, automotive systems, digital consumer products, mobile computing devices, communications networks, and other electronics in which its products provide embedded processing and critical interface functions.

The principal executive offices of Atmel are located at 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110, and its telephone number is (408) 441-0311. Additional information about Atmel and its subsidiaries is included in documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. See the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Hero Acquisition Corporation (see page 14)

Hero Acquisition Corporation (Merger Sub) is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip and is a Delaware corporation. Merger Sub was formed on December 22, 2015, for the sole purpose of effecting the Merger. In the Merger, Merger Sub will be merged with and into Atmel, with Atmel surviving as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip.

The principal executive offices of Merger Sub are located at 2355 West Chandler Boulevard, Chandler, Arizona 85224, and its telephone number is (480) 792-7200.

Comparative per Share Market Price and Dividend Information (see page 30)

Shares of Microchip s common stock are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the symbol MCHP and shares of Atmel common stock are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the symbol ATML. The following table sets forth the closing sales prices of a share of Microchip common stock (as reported on NASDAQ) and of Atmel common stock (as reported on NASDAQ), each on January 15, 2016, the last trading day before the day on which Microchip and Atmel announced the execution of the Merger Agreement, and on February 16, 2016, the last practicable trading day before the date of this proxy statement/prospectus.

	Microchip Common Stock Price per	Atmel Common Stock Price per
	Share	Share
January 15, 2016	\$ 40.52	\$ 7.90
February 16, 2016	\$ 41.28	\$ 8.06

The market prices of Microchip common stock and Atmel common stock will fluctuate before the special meeting and before the Merger is consummated. You should obtain current stock price quotations from a newspaper, the Internet or your broker or banker.

Microchip s Dividend Policy. The holders of Microchip common stock will receive dividends if and when declared by the Microchip Board out of legally available funds or, in the case of stock dividends, out of authorized and available shares of Microchip common stock. Microchip has been declaring and paying quarterly cash dividends on Microchip common stock since the third quarter of its fiscal year ending March 31, 2003. Microchip s total cash dividends paid were \$286.5 million, \$281.2 million and \$273.8 million in its fiscal years 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Microchip Board is free to change Microchip s dividend practices at any time and to increase or decrease the dividend paid, or not to pay a dividend, on Microchip common stock on the basis of Microchip s results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements and future prospects, and other factors deemed relevant by the Microchip Board. Microchip s current intent is to provide for ongoing quarterly cash dividends depending upon market conditions and Microchip s results of operations.

Atmel s Dividend Policy. Prior to 2015, Atmel had never declared or paid any cash dividends on its capital stock. On February 4, 2015, Atmel announced the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend, commencing in the first quarter of 2015. The Merger Agreement prohibits Atmel from authorizing or paying dividends or making distributions on its capital stock, so Atmel does not expect to pay dividends for as long as the Merger Agreement is in effect. In addition, Atmel s credit agreement limits its and its subsidiaries, ability to pay dividends or make any other distribution or payment on account of Atmel s capital stock.

Risk Factors (see page 32)

Before voting at the special meeting, you should carefully consider all of the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus, as well as the specific factors included under the section entitled

Risk Factors beginning on page 32 of this proxy statement/prospectus before deciding whether to vote for approval of the Merger Proposal.

The Atmel Special Meeting (see page 44)

The special meeting will be held on April 1, 2016 at 8:00 a.m., local time, at Atmel s headquarters located at 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110.

At the special meeting, holders of Atmel common stock as of the Record Date will be asked to consider and approve the following proposals:

- 1. The Merger Proposal.
- 2. The Compensation Proposal.
- The Adjournment Proposal.

Record Date and Quorum

Only Atmel stockholders of record as of the Record Date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting. As of the close of business on the Record Date, 423,290,513 shares of Atmel common stock were issued and outstanding and there were 1,150 holders of record of the common stock. Each Atmel stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of Atmel common stock held by such stockholder as of the Record Date.

Holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Atmel common stock entitled to vote as of the Record Date must be present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting in order to have the required quorum for transacting business. Abstentions are counted as present for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business.

Required Vote

The affirmative vote, in person or by proxy, of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Atmel common stock entitled to vote as of the Record Date is required to approve the Merger Proposal. The affirmative vote, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Atmel common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting and entitled to vote on the matter is required to approve each of the Compensation Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal.

If you abstain from voting, fail to vote at the special meeting, or fail to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote on the Merger Proposal, it will have the same effect as a vote cast against the Merger Proposal.

If you abstain from voting or attend the special meeting and fail to vote, it will have the same effect as a vote cast against the Compensation Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal. If you do not attend the special meeting or fail to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote on the Compensation Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Compensation Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal, assuming a quorum is present.

The Merger

Summary of the Merger (see page 53)

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will be merged with and into Atmel, and Atmel will continue as the surviving corporation in the Merger and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip. At the Effective Time, Atmel s restated certificate of incorporation will be amended and restated in the form prescribed

in the Merger Agreement and will be the certificate of incorporation of the surviving corporation from and after the Effective Time.

Recommendation of the Atmel Board; Atmel s Reasons for the Merger (see page 71)

The Atmel Board recommends that Atmel stockholders vote **FOR** the Merger Proposal, **FOR** the Compensation Proposal, and **FOR** the Adjournment Proposal. For more information regarding the factors considered by the Atmel Board in reaching its decision to approve the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the

-3-

other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, see the section entitled The Merger Recommendation of the Atmel Board; Atmel s Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 71 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Opinion of Atmel s Financial Advisor (see page 78 and Annex B)

Atmel retained Qatalyst Partners LP (Qatalyst Partners) to act as its financial advisor in connection with the Merger. Atmel selected Qatalyst Partners to act as its financial advisor based on Qatalyst Partners qualifications, expertise, reputation and knowledge of Atmel s business and affairs and the industry in which it operates. At the meeting of the Atmel Board on January 19, 2016, Qatalyst Partners rendered its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated January 19, 2016, that as of January 19, 2016 and based upon and subject to the considerations, limitations and other matters set forth therein, the Merger Consideration to be received by the holders of Atmel common stock, other than Atmel, Microchip or their respective subsidiaries and except for dissenting stockholders, pursuant to the Merger Agreement was fair, from a financial point of view, to such holders.

The full text of the written opinion of Qatalyst Partners, dated January 19, 2016, is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex B and is incorporated into this proxy statement/prospectus by reference. The opinion sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications of the review undertaken by Qatalyst Partners in rendering its opinion. You should read the opinion carefully in its entirety. Qatalyst Partners—opinion was provided to the Atmel Board and addressed only, as of the date of the opinion, the fairness from a financial point of view of the Merger Consideration to be received by the holders of Atmel common stock, other than Atmel, Microchip or their respective subsidiaries and except for dissenting stockholders, pursuant to the Merger Agreement. It does not address any other aspect of the Merger and does not constitute a recommendation as to how any holder of shares of Atmel common stock should vote with respect to the Merger or any other matter. For a further discussion of Qatalyst Partners—opinion, see the section entitled—The Merger Opinion of Atmel s Financial Advisor—beginning on page 78 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Share Ownership and Voting by Atmel Directors and Executive Officers (see page 45)

As of the Record Date, the directors and executive officers of Atmel held and are entitled to vote, in the aggregate, approximately 3.1% of the aggregate voting power of the outstanding shares of Atmel s common stock.

Listing of Shares of Microchip Common Stock; Delisting and Deregistration of Shares of Atmel Common Stock (see pages 94, 95)

Microchip is obligated to cause the shares of Microchip common stock to be issued to Atmel stockholders pursuant to the Merger to be authorized for listing on NASDAQ at the Effective Time, subject to official notice of issuance. Upon completion of the Merger, shares of Atmel common stock will cease to be listed on NASDAQ and will subsequently be deregistered under the Exchange Act.

See the sections entitled The Merger Listing of Shares of Microchip Common Stock beginning on page 94 of this proxy statement/prospectus and The Merger Delisting and Deregistration of Atmel Common Stock beginning on page 95 of this proxy statement/prospectus for a further discussion of the listing of shares of Microchip common stock and de-listing of Atmel common stock in connection with the Merger.

-4-

The Merger Agreement (see page 99)

The Merger Agreement is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus. Microchip and Atmel encourage you to read the entire Merger Agreement carefully because it is the principal document governing the Merger and the issuance of shares of Microchip common stock.

Merger Consideration (see page 99)

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the Effective Time, each share of Atmel common stock that is issued and outstanding immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger (except for Atmel common stock held by Microchip, Atmel and their respective subsidiaries and except for dissenting shares) will be converted into the right to receive (1) \$7.00 in cash without interest, (2) \$1.15 in Microchip common stock (valued at the ten-trading day average closing price ending on the last trading day prior to the Closing), subject to the conditions and restrictions set forth in the Merger Agreement, and (3) cash in lieu of fractional shares of Microchip common stock as contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The maximum number of shares of Microchip common stock that will be issued in connection with the Merger is 13.0 million shares, and to the extent that the number of shares of Microchip common stock issuable in the Merger would exceed 13.0 million shares, the Cash Consideration per share of Atmel common stock will be increased such that the value of the combined Cash Consideration and Stock Consideration will remain at \$8.15 per share (based upon the average price described in the previous sentence). See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration beginning on page 99 of this proxy/statement prospectus for more information.

Based on the number of shares of Atmel common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2016, and the number of shares of Microchip common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2016, and assuming a ten-trading day average closing price of \$41.49 (calculated based on the closing prices for the ten trading days ended on February 16, 2016, the most recent practicable range of trading days prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus), it is expected that, immediately after completion of the Merger, former Atmel stockholders will receive shares of Microchip common stock in the Merger representing approximately 5.43% of the outstanding shares of Microchip common stock.

Treatment of Atmel Options and Other Equity-Based Awards (see page 100)

Immediately prior to the Effective Time, each outstanding Atmel Option, whether vested or not, will accelerate and become vested and exercisable in full. To the extent that an Atmel Option is not exercised voluntarily through the day immediately preceding the Effective Time, such Atmel Option will be automatically net-exercised immediately prior to the Effective Time (with the exercise price and applicable withholding taxes paid by withholding Atmel common stock otherwise issuable to such optionholder). Upon such exercise, the former holder of the Atmel Option will be issued the net number of shares of Atmel common stock resulting from the net exercise, and such stockholder will thereafter be entitled to receive the Merger Consideration in respect of these shares of Atmel common stock. Any Atmel option with an exercise price greater than the Merger Consideration will be cancelled at the Effective Time for no consideration. No former Atmel Options will remain outstanding following the consummation of the Merger.

Immediately prior to the Effective Time, each unvested and outstanding Atmel Unit (including each performance share award denominated in restricted stock units) that is held by an individual who will continue in service with Microchip at the Effective Time will be assumed by Microchip and converted into equivalent awards in respect of shares of Microchip common stock using a customary exchange ratio intended to provide in respect of the Atmel Unit value equivalent to the Merger Consideration as of the Effective Time. In addition, any vested Atmel Unit will be treated as outstanding Atmel common stock in the Merger, and each holder of such vested Atmel Unit who has not received the underlying shares of Atmel common stock at the Effective Time will receive the Merger Consideration

(subject to applicable tax withholding). No Atmel Units will remain outstanding following the consummation of the Merger.

-5-

Closing and Effective Time (see page 100)

Microchip and Atmel expect the Closing to occur in the second quarter of calendar year 2016. However, the Merger is subject to various regulatory approvals and the satisfaction or waiver of other conditions, and it is possible that factors outside the control of Microchip and Atmel could result in the Merger being completed at an earlier time, a later time or not at all. In the Merger Agreement, Microchip and Atmel have agreed that the Closing Date shall be no later than the second business day following the satisfaction or waiver of the last of the conditions to Closing to be satisfied (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions), or at such other date and time as Atmel and Microchip agree in writing; provided, however, if the Closing Date would otherwise occur within the last 15 days of a calendar quarter, Microchip may elect once, in its sole discretion, by written notice to Atmel to defer the Closing to the first business day occurring immediately after the end of that calendar quarter. There may be a substantial amount of time between the dates on which the special meeting is held and the date on which the Merger is completed.

Appraisal Rights (see page 102)

Record holders of Atmel common stock who do not vote in favor of the Merger Proposal and who otherwise comply with the requirements and procedures of Section 262 of the DGCL are entitled to exercise appraisal rights, which generally entitle stockholders to receive in lieu of the Merger Consideration a cash payment of an amount determined by the Court of Chancery equal to the fair value of their Atmel common stock. A summary description of the appraisal rights available to holders of Atmel common stock under the DGCL and the procedures required to exercise statutory appraisal rights are included under the section entitled. The Merger Appraisal Rights beginning on page 95 of this proxy statement/prospectus. The full text of Section 262 of the DGCL is attached as Annex C to this proxy statement/prospectus. Due to the complexity of the procedures described above, Atmel stockholders who are considering exercising such rights are encouraged to seek the advice of legal counsel.

Restrictions on Atmel s Business Pending the Closing (see page 106)

Atmel has agreed, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Merger Agreement, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries that it will conduct its business in the ordinary course of business prior to the Effective Time or earlier termination of the Merger Agreement, and has agreed to certain restrictions on its ability to take certain actions prior to the Effective Time or earlier termination of the Merger Agreement. See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Restrictions on Atmel s Business Pending the Closing beginning on page 106 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Atmel s Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers (see page 108)

Atmel has agreed that it will not, directly or indirectly:

initiate, solicit or knowingly encourage the making of any proposal or offer that constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to result in, an Atmel Acquisition Proposal (as described in the section entitled The Merger Agreement Atmel s Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers beginning on page 108 of this proxy statement/prospectus);

engage in, enter into, continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or negotiations with any person with respect to, or provide any non-public information or data concerning Atmel or its subsidiaries to any person relating to, any proposal or offer that constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to result in, an Atmel Acquisition Proposal;

-6-

enter into any acquisition agreement, merger agreement or similar definitive agreement, or any letter of intent, memorandum of understanding or agreement in principle or any other agreement (other than a confidentiality agreement having terms that the Atmel Board determines in good faith are not materially less favorable in the aggregate to Atmel than those contained in its confidentiality agreement with Microchip) relating to an Atmel Acquisition Proposal; or

authorize, adopt, approve or recommend or publicly propose to authorize, adopt, approve or recommend to the Atmel stockholders, or submit to the Atmel stockholders for a vote at any stockholder meeting, any Atmel Acquisition Proposal.

Atmel has agreed to (1) cease any discussions or negotiations with any person with respect to any Atmel Acquisition Proposal, (2) promptly notify Microchip after knowledge of receipt of any Atmel Acquisition Proposal or any request for information from, or any negotiations sought to be initiated or resumed with respect to an Atmel Acquisition Proposal, and (3) keep Microchip reasonably informed on a prompt basis of any material developments regarding any Atmel Acquisition Proposal.

However, until receipt of the Atmel Stockholder Approval, if Atmel receives a *bona fide* Atmel Acquisition Proposal from any person that did not result from a material breach of its non-solicitation obligations, Atmel may:

provide information (including non-public information and data) regarding, and afford access to the business, properties, assets, books, records and personnel of, Atmel and its subsidiaries to such person if Atmel receives from such person (or has received from such person) an executed confidentiality agreement having terms that the Atmel Board determines in good faith are not materially less favorable in the aggregate to Atmel than those contained in its confidentiality agreement with Microchip, provided that Atmel will promptly make available to Microchip any non-public information concerning Atmel or its subsidiaries that is provided to any person given such access that was not previously made available to Microchip; and

engage in, enter into, continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or negotiations with such person with respect to such Atmel Acquisition Proposal,

as long as (1) Atmel has not materially breached its non-solicitation obligations with respect to such Atmel Acquisition Proposal and (2) prior to taking any action described above, the Atmel Board determines in good faith that (a) such Atmel Acquisition Proposal either constitutes an Atmel Superior Proposal (as described in the section entitled The Merger Agreement Atmel s Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers beginning on page 108 of this proxy statement/prospectus) or would reasonably be expected to result in an Atmel Superior Proposal and (b) the failure to participate in such discussions or negotiations or furnish such information would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the directors fiduciary duties under applicable law.

See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Atmel s Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers beginning on page 108 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Atmel s Agreement Not to Change the Atmel Board Recommendation (see page 110)

Atmel has agreed that the Atmel Board will only change its recommendation to the Atmel stockholders that they adopt the Merger Agreement (the Atmel Board Recommendation) in certain, limited circumstances.

Atmel has agreed that the Atmel Board will not:

change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify, in a manner adverse to Microchip (or publicly propose or resolve to change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify), the Atmel Board Recommendation;

-7-

fail to include in this proxy statement/prospectus (1) the determination of the Atmel Board that the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement are advisable and are fair to and in the best interests of Atmel and the Atmel stockholders, (2) the approval of the Atmel Board of the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and (3) the recommendation of the Atmel Board to the Atmel stockholders that the Atmel stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement;

publicly approve or recommend, or publicly propose to approve or recommend to the Atmel stockholders, an Atmel Acquisition Proposal;

fail to recommend against acceptance of any tender offer or exchange offer that constitutes an Atmel Acquisition Proposal by the Atmel stockholders or against another Atmel Acquisition Proposal that is otherwise publicly announced within ten business days after commencement or announcement thereof; or

authorize, adopt, approve or publicly propose to authorize, adopt or approve or recommend, or enter into, any agreement constituting or relating to an Atmel Acquisition Proposal or requiring Atmel to abandon, terminate, or fail to consummate the Merger or any other transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

Any of the actions in the first four bullets above is referred to as an Atmel Change of Recommendation.

The Atmel Board may make an Atmel Change of Recommendation (so long as Atmel has provided prior written notice to Microchip of its or the Atmel Board s intention to make an Atmel Change of Recommendation at least four business days in advance of taking such action) as follows:

other than in relation to an Atmel Acquisition Proposal, if the Atmel Board determines in good faith (after consultation with its outside legal counsel) that, as a result of an event, development or change in circumstances that occurs or arises after the execution and delivery of the Merger Agreement (other than an Atmel Acquisition Proposal) that was not known (or the consequences of which were not known) to the Atmel Board prior to the execution and delivery of the Merger Agreement, the failure to make an Atmel Change of Recommendation would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the directors fiduciary duties under applicable law, and the Atmel Board has considered in good faith any changes to the Merger Agreement or other arrangements that may be offered in writing by, and would be legally binding upon, Microchip and shall have determined in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that it would continue to reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the directors fiduciary duties under applicable law not to make an Atmel Change of Recommendation, even if such changes were given effect; and

if Atmel receives an Atmel Acquisition Proposal and the Atmel Board determines in good faith (after consultation with outside counsel and its financial advisors) that the Atmel Acquisition Proposal constitutes an Atmel Superior Proposal and that the failure to make an Atmel Change of Recommendation would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the directors—fiduciary duties under applicable law, but only if Atmel has not materially breached its non-solicitation obligations with respect to such Atmel Acquisition Proposal and terminates the Merger Agreement concurrently with entering into any agreement relating to an

Atmel Acquisition Proposal and pays a termination fee as described below, and the Atmel Board has considered in good faith any changes to the Merger Agreement or other arrangements that may be offered in writing by, and would be legally binding upon, Microchip and shall have determined in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel and its financial advisors, that the Atmel Acquisition Proposal received by Atmel continues to constitute an Atmel Superior Proposal, even if such changes were given effect.

See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Atmel s Agreement Not to Change the Atmel Board Recommendation beginning on page 110 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Regulatory Filings (see page 114)

Microchip and Atmel have each agreed to take certain actions in order to obtain regulatory clearances required to consummate the Merger. The Merger is subject to review by the U.S. Federal Trade Commission (the FTC). The Merger is also subject to review by German and South Korean governmental authorities and requires pre-merger notification and the observance of an applicable waiting period in Germany (German Antitrust Law) and South Korea (South Korean Antitrust Law). See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Regulatory Filings beginning on page 114 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Financing (see page 114)

Microchip currently anticipates that it will finance the Cash Consideration through a combination of cash on hand and available borrowings under its existing credit facility, and does not currently anticipate raising additional financing in connection with the Merger. To the extent that Microchip determines to obtain additional financing prior to the Effective Time, Atmel has agreed to use reasonable best efforts to cooperate with Microchip in connection with any such financing. The Closing is not, however, subject to a financing condition or to Microchip s ability to obtain any financing from third party sources. See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Financing beginning on page 114 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger (see page 117)

Under the Merger Agreement, each party s obligation to effect the Merger is subject to satisfaction or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, mutual waiver at the Effective Time of each of the following conditions:

the Atmel Stockholder Approval shall have been obtained;

(1) no governmental entity having competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued or entered any order that remains in effect that enjoins or otherwise prohibits the Merger substantially on the terms contemplated by the Merger Agreement, (2) no law shall have been enacted or promulgated by any governmental entity having competent jurisdiction that makes consummation of the Merger illegal, and (3) no governmental entity having competent jurisdiction shall have instituted any proceeding seeking any such laws and orders;

the Form S-4 of which this proxy statement/prospectus is a part shall have become effective under the Securities Act and the Form S-4 will not be the subject of any stop order or proceedings seeking a stop order, and the SEC shall not have initiated or threatened any proceeding for that purpose or any similar proceeding in respect of this proxy statement/prospectus;

any waiting period (and any extension thereof) applicable to the consummation of the Merger under the HSR Act shall have expired or been terminated and the consents or approvals from the German Bundeskartellamt and the South Korean Fair Trade Commission shall have been obtained; and

the shares of Microchip common stock issuable to the Atmel stockholders as contemplated by the Merger Agreement shall have been approved for listing on NASDAQ, subject to official notice of issuance. Microchip s and Merger Sub s obligation to effect the Merger is further subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

Atmel s fundamental representations and warranties, (1) if qualified or limited by materiality or Material Adverse Effect (as described below) qualifications, will be true and correct as of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such earlier date) and (2) if not qualified or limited by materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualifications, will be true and correct in all material respects as

of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such earlier date);

the representations and warranties of Atmel relating to capital structure will be true and correct in all but *de minimis* respects as of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct in all but *de minimis* respects as of such earlier date);

the representations and warranties of Atmel (other than with respect to Atmel s fundamental representations and warranties and the representations and warranties relating to its capital structure) will be true and correct (without giving effect to any qualifications or limitations as to materiality or Material Adverse Effect set forth therein, except as otherwise provided in the representations and warranties of Atmel with respect to the absence of certain changes and material contracts) as of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such earlier date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be so true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect with respect to Atmel;

Atmel shall have performed in all material respects the covenants required to be performed by it under the Merger Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date;

Microchip shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Atmel by a senior executive of Atmel and dated as of the Closing Date to the effect that the conditions related to Atmel s representations, warranties and covenants described above have been satisfied; and

since January 19, 2016, a Material Adverse Effect with respect to Atmel shall not have occurred.

Atmel s obligation to effect the Merger is further subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

Microchip s fundamental representations and warranties, (1) if qualified or limited by materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualifications, will be true and correct as of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such earlier date) and (2) if not qualified or limited by materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualifications, will be true and correct in all material respects as of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such earlier date);

the representations and warranties of Microchip and Merger Sub (other than with respect to Microchip s fundamental representations) will be true and correct (without giving effect to any qualifications or limitations as to materiality or Material Adverse Effect set forth therein, except as otherwise provided in the representations and warranties of Microchip and Merger Sub with respect to the absence of certain changes and material contracts) as of January 19, 2016 and at and as of the Closing Date as though made on or as of such date (except to the extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such earlier date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be so true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect with respect to Microchip;

each of Microchip and Merger Sub shall have performed in all material respects their respective covenants required to be performed by each under the Merger Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date;

Atmel shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of each of Microchip and Merger Sub by a senior executive of Microchip and Merger Sub, respectively, and dated as of the Closing Date to the effect that the conditions related to Microchip s and Merger Sub s representations, warranties and covenants described above have been satisfied; and

since January 19, 2016, a Material Adverse Effect with respect to Microchip shall not have occurred. The Merger Agreement provides that neither party may rely on the failure of any condition to Closing to be satisfied if such failure was caused by that party s failure to comply with its obligations under the Merger Agreement.

Any or all of the conditions described above other than the Atmel Stockholder Approval may be waived, in whole or in part, by Microchip or Atmel, to the extent permitted by applicable law.

See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Conditions to Closing beginning on page 117 of this proxy statements/prospectus for more information.

Termination of the Merger Agreement (see page 119)

The Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time by mutual written consent of Microchip and Atmel, and either party may terminate the Merger Agreement in the following circumstances:

if prior to the Effective Time, the Merger is enjoined, prohibited or otherwise restrained by the terms of a final, non-appealable order of a governmental entity of competent jurisdiction, except that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement on this basis will not be available to any party whose breach of any provision of the Merger Agreement results in or causes such order to be issued or the failure of the order to be removed;

if the Merger has not been consummated on or before July 17, 2016 (the Initial Outside Date), which will be automatically extended to October 15, 2016 if the Closing is delayed due to certain conditions to Closing relating to antitrust laws not being satisfied, or such later date as Microchip and Atmel agree upon in writing (the Outside Date), except that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement on this basis will not be available to any party whose breach of any provision of the Merger Agreement results in or causes the failure of the Merger to be consummated by such date; or

if the special meeting (including any adjournment or postponement thereof in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement) has concluded, the Atmel stockholders have voted, and the Atmel Stockholder Approval was not obtained.

Atmel may also terminate the Merger Agreement at any time prior to the Effective Time as follows:

in order for Atmel to concurrently enter into an agreement for an Atmel Superior Proposal, provided that Atmel has complied in all material respects with its obligations relating to an Atmel Change of Recommendation and Atmel pays to Microchip substantially concurrently with such termination the termination fee described below; or

if Microchip or Merger Sub breaches any representation, warranty or covenant made by Microchip or Merger Sub in the Merger Agreement and such breach (1) is not curable by the Outside Date or, if curable, is not cured prior to the 45th day after written notice thereof is given by Atmel to Microchip

-11-

and (2) would result in the conditions to Closing related to Microchip s representations, warranties or covenants failing to be satisfied; provided that Atmel is not then in breach of the Merger Agreement such that the conditions to Closing related to Atmel s representations, warranties or covenants would not be capable of being satisfied by the Outside Date.

Microchip may also terminate the Merger Agreement at any time prior to the Effective Time as follows:

if Atmel breaches any representation, warranty or covenant made by Atmel in the Merger Agreement (other than its obligations described above under The Merger Agreement Atmel s Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers) and such breach (1) is not curable by the Outside Date or, if curable, is not cured prior to the 45th day after written notice thereof is given by Microchip to Atmel and (2) would result in the conditions to Closing related to Atmel s representations, warranties or covenants failing to be satisfied; provided that Microchip is not then in breach of the Merger Agreement such that the conditions to Closing related to Microchip s representations, warranties or covenants would not be capable of being satisfied by the Outside Date;

if the Atmel Board makes an Atmel Change of Recommendation; or

if Atmel willfully or intentionally breaches any of its non-solicitation obligations in any material respect. See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Termination of the Merger Agreement beginning on page 119 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Termination Fees (see page 120)

In certain circumstances, Atmel may be required to pay a termination fee of \$137.3 million in cash to Microchip if the Merger Agreement is terminated. Additionally, in the event that either Microchip or Atmel terminates the Merger Agreement as a result of the failure by Atmel s stockholders to approve the Merger, Atmel must reimburse Microchip for reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred in connection with the Merger up to \$20.0 million with any such reimbursement offsetting any termination fee payable by Atmel. In certain circumstances, Microchip may be required to pay a termination fee of \$250.0 million in cash to Atmel if the Merger Agreement is terminated. See the section entitled The Merger Agreement Termination Fees beginning on page 120 of this proxy statement/prospectus for more information.

Dividends (see page 102)

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Atmel is prohibited from paying dividends on its common stock during the pendency of the Merger.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences (see page 123)

The Merger will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, a U.S. Holder (as defined in the section entitled Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 123 of this proxy statement/prospectus) of shares of Atmel common stock generally will recognize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes equal to the difference between (1) the sum of the amount of cash and the fair market value of the shares of Microchip common stock received and (2) the holder s tax basis in the shares of Atmel common stock exchanged in

the Merger.

Any such gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss and generally will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder s holding period in the Atmel common stock immediately prior to the Merger is more than one

year. For U.S. Holders that are individuals, estates or trusts, long-term capital gain generally is taxed at preferential U.S. federal rates. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

A U.S. Holder will have a tax basis in the shares of Microchip common stock received in the Merger equal to the fair market value of such shares. The holding period for shares of Microchip common stock received in exchange for shares of Atmel common stock in the Merger will begin on the date immediately following the Closing Date.

A Non-U.S. Holder (as defined in the section entitled Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 123 of this proxy statement/prospectus) generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax with respect to the exchange of shares of Atmel common stock for cash and shares of Microchip common stock in the Merger unless such Non-U.S. Holder has certain connections to the United States.

The U.S. federal income tax consequences described above may not apply to all holders of Atmel common stock, including certain holders specifically referred to on page 123. Your tax consequences will depend on your own situation. You should consult your tax advisor to determine the particular tax consequences of the Merger to you.

Accounting Treatment (see page 126)

Each of Microchip and Atmel prepares its financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The Merger will be accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting with Microchip treated as the acquiror of Atmel for accounting purposes.

Comparison of Stockholders Rights (see page 129)

Atmel stockholders, whose rights are currently governed by the restated certificate of incorporation of Atmel (the Atmel Charter) and the amended and restated bylaws of Atmel (as amended, the Atmel Bylaws) will, to the extent such holders receive Microchip common stock in the Merger, upon completion of the Merger, become stockholders of Microchip and their rights will be governed by the restated certificate of incorporation of Microchip (the Microchip Charter) and the amended and restated bylaws of Microchip (the Microchip Bylaws). The differences between the Atmel governing documents and the Microchip governing documents are described in detail under the section entitled Comparison of Stockholders Rights beginning on page 129 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

THE COMPANIES

Microchip Technology Incorporated

Microchip is a leading provider of microcontroller, mixed-signal, analog and Flash-IP solutions, providing low-risk product development, lower total system cost and faster time to market for thousands of diverse customer applications worldwide. Microchip develops, manufactures and sells specialized semiconductor products used by its customers for a wide variety of embedded control applications. Microchip s product portfolio comprises general purpose and specialized 8-bit, 16-bit, and 32-bit microcontrollers, a broad spectrum of high-performance linear, mixed-signal, power management, thermal management, RF, safety, security, wired connectivity and wireless connectivity devices, as well as serial EEPROMs, Serial Flash memories, Parallel Flash memories and serial SRAM memories. Microchip also licenses Flash-IP solutions that are incorporated in a broad range of products. Microchip s synergistic product portfolio targets thousands of applications worldwide and a growing demand for high-performance designs in the automotive, communications, computing, consumer and industrial control markets. Microchip s quality systems are ISO/TS16949 (2009 version) certified.

Shares of Microchip common stock are traded on NASDAQ under the symbol MCHP. Following the Merger, shares of Microchip common stock will continue to be traded on NASDAQ under the symbol MCHP.

The principal executive offices of Microchip are located at 2355 West Chandler Boulevard, Chandler, Arizona 85224, and its telephone number is (480) 792-7200. Additional information about Microchip and its subsidiaries is included in documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. See the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Atmel Corporation

Atmel is one of the world s leading suppliers of general purpose microcontrollers, which are self-contained computers-on-a-chip. This product focus has enabled Atmel to develop and maintain a diversified, global customer base that incorporates its semiconductors into industrial products, automotive systems, digital consumer products, mobile computing devices, communications networks, and other electronics in which its products provide embedded processing and critical interface functions.

The principal executive offices of Atmel are located at 1600 Technology Drive, San Jose, California 95110, and its telephone number is (408) 441-0311. Additional information about Atmel is included in documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. See the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Hero Acquisition Corporation

Hero Acquisition Corporation, or Merger Sub, is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip and is a Delaware corporation. Merger Sub was formed on December 22, 2015, for the sole purpose of effecting the Merger. In the Merger, Merger Sub will be merged with and into Atmel, with Atmel surviving as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip.

The principal executive offices of Merger Sub are located at 2355 West Chandler Boulevard, Chandler, Arizona 85224, and its telephone number is (480) 792-7200.

-14-

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF MICROCHIP

The following tables present selected historical consolidated financial data of Microchip as of and for the years ended March 31, 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and as of and for the nine-month periods ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. The consolidated financial statements of Microchip have been presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The selected consolidated financial data as of March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2015 are derived from Microchip s audited consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. The selected consolidated financial data as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the years in the two-year period ended March 31, 2012 are derived from Microchip s audited consolidated financial statements not included or incorporated by reference herein.

The selected consolidated financial data of Microchip as of and for the nine-month periods ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 have been derived from the unaudited consolidated interim financial information incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus, which, in the opinion of Microchip s management, includes all adjustments necessary to present fairly Microchip s results of operations and financial condition at the dates and for the periods presented. The results for the nine-month period ended December 31, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that you should expect for the entire year ended March 31, 2016, or any other period.

The financial information set forth below is only a summary that should be read in conjunction with the section entitled Risk Factors beginning on page 32 of this proxy statement/prospectus and Microchip s consolidated financial statements, including the related notes, as well as the section entitled Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in Microchip s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 and the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended June 30, 2015, September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2015 that Microchip previously filed with the SEC and that are incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of any results to be expected in the future. See also the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 137 of this proxy statement/prospectus for the location of information incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus.

-15-

	Nine Mon			T 7	1 134 1	21	
	December 31,		Year ended March 31,				
	2015	2014	2015	2014	2013	2012	2011
	(in thousands, except per share amounts)						
Net sales	\$ 1,615,687	\$ 1,603,829	\$ 2,147,036	\$ 1,931,217	\$1,581,623	\$ 1,383,176	\$ 1,487,205
Cost of sales (1)	713,002	687,897	917,472	802,474	743,164	583,882	605,954
Gross profit	902,685	915,932	1,229,564	1,128,743	838,459	799,294	881,251
Operating expenses:							
Research and							
development (1)	276,958	261,881	349,543	305,043	254,723	182,650	170,607
Selling, general and administrative	·	·					
(1)	223,377	207,037	274,815	267,278	261,471	208,328	222,184
Amortization of acquired							
intangible assets	126,764	129,659	176,746	94,534	111,537	10,963	12,412
Special charges	3,187	2,082	2,840	3,024	32,175	837	1,865
	630,286	600,659	803,944	669,879	659,906	402,778	407,068
Operating income	272,399	315,273	425,620	458,864	178,553	396,516	474,183
(Losses) gains on equity method	·	·	·	·	·	,	·
investments	(289)	(129)	(317)	(177)	(617)	(195)	157
Other income (expense):							
Interest income	18,610	14,197	19,527	16,485	15,560	17,992	16,002
Interest expense	(77,203)	(41,920)	(62,034)	(48,716)	(40,915)	(34,266)	(31,521)